
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
NOVEMBER 23, 1999                                              NOON                        SCOTT HEYMAN CONFERENCE ROOM 

 
PRESENT: C. Evans, B. Blanchard, T. Joseph, G. Totman, M. Lane 
 
STAFF: W. Benjamin, Deputy County Administrator; P. Meskill, Sheriff, J. Beach, Stop-DWI; R. Teasley, OAR; 

C. Brill, Purchasing; J. Miller, Fire, Disaster and EMS Coordinator 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at Noon. 
 
ADDITIONS 
 
 Approval to Seek Bids and Level of Committee Involvement - Police Package 
 Resolution No.       - Increase in Hours of Domestic Violence Prevention Coordinator - Criminal Justice 
 Resolution No.       - Appropriation  from Contingent Fund for Replacement Pay at the Sheriff’s Office 
 
MINUTES 
 

It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Ms. Blanchard and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
minutes of October 26, 1999, as submitted. 

 
PURCHASING  
 
 
 Ms. Brill stated that the bid package will be for a Volvo police package and a Chevy Impala police package.  Mr. 
Meskill stated that the bid package was put together for the marked and unmarked police package and isn't on state bid.  
The only state bid is for a Ford Crown Victoria.  The State's bid package for the Chevy Lumina is already bid and built 
and you cannot buy these any longer.  He stated it isn't clear if the Volvo package will come in at a reasonable price, but 
the Impala price should come in close to the Lumina pricing.  Mr. Lane asked if the bid includes side air bags.  Mr. 
Meskill stated that this can be bid, but it will add approximately $800 to the cost.  This can be added as an option and the 
Volvo may have it as a standard feature.    
 

It was the consensus of committee to have Purchasing seek and award the bids for the police package with the 
addition of side air bags as an option.   

 
PUBLIC BUILDING SPACE STUDY COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 

Mr. Joseph stated the Committee has not met since his last report to the full Board.  It was the consensus of the 
Committee to remove this item from the monthly agenda with Mr. Joseph providing updates as needed. 

 
STOP-DWI UPDATE 
 
 Mr. Beach distributed the monthly statistics.  These are on file with the original minutes.  Mr. Beach reported that 
the Sheriff's Department continues to make a high number of arrests with the number being 35 percent higher than this 
same time last year.  Mr. Beach reported that one-third of arrests have prior convictions and 12.5 percent are the result of 
traffic accidents.  Ms. Blanchard asked Mr. Meskill how the Sheriff's Department is achieving this and commended him 
for this effort.  She stated this should not be considered an extra responsibility to their normal jobs.  Mr. Meskill stated 
that he has been asking a select group of individuals to continue working the special patrol and asking others to fill in 
where needed.  He stated that he has made these arrests a priority and a lot depends on the hours the individuals making 
the arrests work.     
 

Mr. Beach also distributed the statistics for perimeter municipalities involved in DWI arrests.    These are on file 
with the original minutes. 
 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 2

 
Mr. Beach stated that the new local law reforming the Traffic Safety Board is essentially the same as the law 

creating the board in 1968.  The language is almost identical due to the state statute.  The main area of change is the 
number of people on the board increasing from 15 to not more than 20 people.  Mr. Beach stated the board has been 
defunct for approximately a decade and without an active board federal dollars are lost every year.  He stated the new 
board would bring a lot of constituencies together to work on a strategic plan and also to funnel monies to municipalities.   
 
 Mr. Joseph stated that language is needed in the law repealing the old law.  Mr. Lane stated he would like the 
board to be smaller, noting it is difficult to get people to attend.  Mr. Beach stated he is recommending the increase of five 
people to allow for a good spectrum of individuals to serve.   
 
 Mr. Joseph stated it is not clear if the board is being established to make the County eligible for funding, or if 
there are tasks that will be completed.  He stated he would like a clear outline of what tasks will be completed. Mr. Beach 
stated that both areas will be covered, the group will create a strategic plan each year to work on traffic safety issues, 
noting that there is money to do things that cannot be done currently.  He stated that there are also issues that cross 
municipalities that would get funded.   
 
 Mr. Totman asked if this is being promoted within the County.  Mr. Beach stated that when it has been mentioned 
it has been received enthusiastically.  Ms. Blanchard stated that involvement of the police community would be needed, 
but suggested that the Committee may be able to exist as a subcommittee of the Ithaca Tompkins County Transportation 
Council (ITCTC) and a means to funnel the federal funds.   She stated that safety issues are a high priority of the Council.     
Mr. Lane asked how the Committee will be staffed.  He suggested creating the board with five members and if there is a 
substantial amount of work to be done, it could be expanded.  Mr. Beach stated he sees this as an expansion of his job 
responsibilities and he will be the staff person for the Committee. He stated he does not know if the Board can act as a 
subcommittee of the ITCTC and he will find this out.  Mr. Beach stated the greatest amount of work would be done in the 
second quarter of each year to create the strategic plan.  He stated he envisions the process being setting priorities and 
securing funding from the Governor's Traffic Safety Board.     
 
 Mr. Totman suggested tabling this until the next meeting until more information is received.  Mr. Benjamin 
suggested having Mr. Beach follow-up with answers to Committee member's questions within the next couple of weeks 
and if there are questions remaining, having a special meeting prior to the regularly scheduled December meeting. 
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Mr. Lane and unanimously adopted by voice vote to postpone the 
following resolution to the December Committee meeting: 
 
RESOLUTION NO.         -  AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING ON RECISION OF LOCAL LAW NO 2 OF 

1968 AND ADOPTION OF LOCAL LAW NO H OF 1999 ESTABLISHING A 
COUNTY TRAFFIC SAFETY BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, Tompkins County used to have a functioning County Traffic Safety Board, which was authorized by 

Local Law No 2 of 1968, and 
WHEREAS, the Tompkins County Traffic Safety Board has been defunct for over a decade, and 
WHEREAS, Tompkins County has lost opportunities for funding in areas of traffic safety because of the lack of a 

functioning County Traffic Safety Board, now therefore be it 
RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Public Safety Committee, that a public hearing be held before the Board 

of Representatives in Board Chambers of the Tompkins County Courthouse, 320 North Tioga Street, Ithaca, NY 14850, 
on Tuesday, December 21, 1999, at 5:30 o’clock in the evening thereof concerning Local Law No H of 1999, 

RESOLVED, further, That the Clerk of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to place proper notice of such 
public hearing in the official newspaper of the County. 
SEQR ACTION:  TYPE II-20 
 
 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 3

 
 
ASSIGNED COUNSEL UPDATE 
 
 Mr. Benjamin reported that Ms. Hughes is unable to attend today's meeting because of a recent increase in the 
workload at Assigned Counsel.   
 
OAR 
 
 Ms. Teasley reported that OAR has funded 51 bails for the year to date, this is slightly higher than projected for 
this time of year.  She reported that she will be stepping down as director to spend more time with her family and she will 
be leaving in the middle of December.  She expressed her pleasure in working with the Public Safety Committee and 
members of the Criminal Justice community.  She stated that the OAR Board of Directors is actively searching to fill her 
position and hopes to have it filled by the first of the year.     
 
 Mr. Lane stated that Ms. Teasely has been a very active member of the of the Public Safety Space Study 
Committee and will be missed.  Mr. Meskill stated that it has been refreshing working with Ms. Teasley both as a former 
Board Member and as the current Sheriff.  Ms. Blanchard asked if it would be possible to keep Ms. Teasley on the Public 
Safety Space Study Committee, noting it would be difficult to have someone new take over this late in the process.  Mr. 
Joseph stated that the appointment is made by the Chair of the Board and Ms. Teasley sits on the Committee as Director 
of OAR.  He stated he is not sure if this is possible because it is important to have the OAR Director on the Committee. 
 
DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
 

Mr. Benjamin reported that the interface is being worked on for the CISNET and records management system.  
The system change requests have been agreed on.  He stated that Mr. Miller will modify the existing requisition and do 
one purchase order.  Mr. Benjamin stated that the answers should be received from the technical staff within the next few 
days.  He stated that the increased surcharge should cover the equipment, but if not, it may be necessary to request 
$20,000 from the $150,000 that has been set aside for the electronics futures capital project.   
 
RESOLUTION NO.    INCREASE IN HOURS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION COORDINATOR - 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE 
 

It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Mr. Joseph and unanimously adopted by voice vote.  Mr. Benjamin 
stated that this position is funded through grant monies and the County has no intention now or in the future of using 
county funds.  He stated he has asked the Domestic Violence Coordinator to administer the STOPS Grant and the Child 
Fatality Grant. .  Mr. Totman requested that the wording in the last resolved be changed to reflect that the position is fully 
grant funding dependent.  This change is reflected in the resolution below. 
 

WHEREAS, the duties of Domestic Violence Prevention Coordinator have been expanded to include monitoring 
the STOP Grant and the Child Fatality Grant contracts and budgets, and 

WHEREAS, these additional responsibilities require significant time, coordinating agencies, reporting to grantors 
and preparing grants for continued funding, now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Public Safety Committee, That the position of Domestic Violence 
Prevention Coordinator (64/346), labor grade N(64), confidential competitive class, be increased from 35.0 to 40.0 hours 
per week effective January 13, 2000.  

RESOLVED, further, That this is an change in annual salary from $35,427 to $40,485, and it is 
RESOLVED, further, That no additional monies are needed for this change in hours, as position is fully grant 

funding dependent.     
SEQR ACTION:  TYPE II-20 
 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 4

Mr. Evans asked about the schedule for CISNET.  Mr. Benjamin stated that two statements of work pieces need to 
be signed and then the contract will be finalized.  He stated it was necessary to make sure all parties understand what is 
needed for the CISNET and records management system interface.   

 
 Mr. Benjamin stated that there are two groups in the County working on running a fiber optics line in the City.  
He stated he spoke with Greg Potter, ITS Director, and it was decided that the County should not put pressure on the City, 
but if this were to take place it would definitely strengthen connections.  Mr. Evans stated that it is unfortunate that this is 
being held up because it would create enough competition to be in the best interest of the City and the County. 
 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 ELECTRONIC MONITORING UPDATE 
 
 Mr. Benjamin stated Ms. Leinthall  is out on an extended medical leave and is not able to attend today's meeting.   
 
FIRE, DISASTER AND EMS 
 
 Mr. Miller had no report.  
 
 BUDGET TRANSFERS – INFORMATION ONLY   
 
 FROM:  3411.59311  Maintenance   $300 
   3411.54332  Books and Publications  $300 
 
 TO:  3411.54303  Office Supplies   $300 
   3411.54330  Printing    $300 
 
Explanation: Provide office supplies for the dispatch center office until the end of the year and cover excessive printing 
charges. 
 
SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
 
RESOLUTION NO.       - APPROPRIATION  FROM CONTINGENT FUND FOR REPLACEMENT PAY AT 

THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
  
 It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Ms. Blanchard and unanimously adopted by voice vote. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office has employees who were disabled or injured and unable to perform their duty, 
and 
 WHEREAS, the Fiscal Policy of Tompkins County allows for such replacement pay for employees who have 
been out longer than two months, and 
 WHEREAS, with the exception of one correction officer this should take care of the replacement pay for this 
year, now therefore be it 
 RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Public Safety Committee and Budget and Quality Planning Committee, 
That the Director of Finance appropriate a total of $75,126 to the Sheriff’s budget for replacement pay for the period of 
August 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999, 
RESOLVED, further, That the money be distributed to the following accounts: 
 
FROM:    CONTINGENT FUND  A1990.54400                  $75,126 
 
TO:  UNIFORM DIVISION  A3113.51000 Regular Pay       22,234 
      A3113.58800 Fringe                           5,558 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 5

 
  CORRECTIONS DIVISION A3150.51000 Regular Pay               37,867 
                                                                         A3150.58800  Fringe                         9,467 
SEQR ACTION: TYPE II-20 

 
JAIL STATISTICS 

 
 Mr. Meskill distributed the jail statistics.  These are on file with the original minutes.  Mr. Meskill reported that 
the population at the jail is increasing and the numbers range from the high 80's with the highest numbers being 103 to 
105 inmates. 
 
 Mr. Lane asked what happened with the bank robbery suspect that was apprehended last week.  Mr. Meskill 
reported that individual is still in the hospital and is in the custody of the State Police.  He stated that the person has not 
been arrested yet so the State Police are responsible and the Sheriff's Department has been helping out with relief duty. 
 
 Mr. Meskill reported that the department has been doing a lot of transports to and from justice courts. Mr. Joseph 
stated that the jail statistics indicate that the booking numbers are down, but the length of stay is higher. 
 

Mr. Meskill reported that the jail policy manual is nearly complete with the exception of use of force and 
firearms.  Once complete it will be submitted to the Department of Corrections for approval.  He stated a group of staff is 
putting together new inmate booklets and it will reflect the new policies.  Mr. Meskill reported that firearms training for 
the jail staff is complete and noted one female officer did not qualify.  He stated this individual is not needed for 
transports and will requalify in the spring.  Mr. Meskill stated that Deputy Manning recently received a Top Cop Award.  
He was the only deputy sheriff recognized; the other individuals were either from the State Police or village police 
departments.  Mr. Meskill stated that two robberies last week kept both the Sheriff's Department and the State Police very 
busy.   

 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT  
 
It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Ms. Blanchard and unanimously adopted by voice vote. 
 
REVENUE:  3113.42626 Drug Forfeiture   $600 
 

APPROPRIATION:  3112.54412 Travel and Training  $600 
 

Explanation: Monies needed to cover the cost for Investigator Dan Drew to attend the Thirty-Second Annual Regional 
Criminal Investigation School.  
 
POLICE OFFICER TRAINING FOR DETECTION OF INDIVIDUALS DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE 
OF DRUGS 
 
 Mr. Meskill stated that this training takes three to four weeks and is done in stages.  He sated that to his 
knowledge there is one trooper that is trained in the County.  He stated that the training is fairly expensive and a time 
consuming process.    Mr. Beach stated that one stage of the training is attending field training on Long Island.  Mr. Lane 
stated that he believes the number of individuals driving under the influence of drugs far exceeds the number of DWI's.  
He stated that he would like the County to pursue this training and asked Mr. Meskill to prepare a proposal.  Mr. Beach 
stated that this is true and the number of cross-users would be even higher.  Mr. Beach stated that it may be possible to use 
funds from the Governor's Traffic Safety Board to cover the cost of this training.  Mr. Meskill stated he will prepare a 
proposal, but noted he is hesitant to pursue this training due to the time and money involved. 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 6

 It was Moved by Mr. Lane, seconded by Mr. Joseph and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
following appointments to the Criminal Justice Advisory Board: 
 
 Marilyn Ray - At-large Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 Louise Miller - At-large Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Joseph, seconded by Mr. Totman and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
following appointments to the Family Court Advisory Council and the appointments to the E911 Operations Committee: 
 
 Family Court Advisory Council 
 
 Stuart Grinnell - Mental Health Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 Abigail De Loache - Attorney Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 Judith Johnson - Probation Department Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 
 E911 Operations Committee 
  
 Brian Wilbur - Ithaca Fire Chief or Designee Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 Peter Meskill - Tompkins County Sheriff - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 Kenneth Lansing - Village Police Chief Representative - Term to expire December 31, 2002 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 1:08 p.m.  The next meeting will be held December 28, 1999, at Noon in the Scott 
Heyman Conference Room. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Public Safety Committee 
November 23, 1999 
 

 7

 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jennifer Luu, Administrative Assistant, Board of Representative's Office. 
 
 


	 Resolution No.       - Appropriation  from Contingent Fund for Replacement Pay at the Sheriff’s Office
	RESOLUTION NO.       - APPROPRIATION  FROM CONTINGENT FUND FOR REPLACEMENT PAY AT THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE

